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To: Mayor and City Council 
 
From: Kelly Diekmann, Planning & Housing Director 
 
Date: February 28, 2023 
 
Subject: Request from Kurt Friedrich Regarding Initiating a Plan 2040 Amendment 

Referral Request to Remove the Neighborhood Commercial Designation 
from the southwest corner of the intersection at Cameron School Road and 
George Washington Avenue  

 
Recently the City Council approved on December 13, 2022 a rezoning with Master Plan 
for the 105.62 acres Bluffs Development, of which approximately 85.62 acres were 
zoned to  a combination of Suburban Residential Low Density (FS-RL) to Suburban 
Residential Medium Density (FS-RM) with the remaining 20 acres maintaining its 
Agricultural (A) zoning designation. The request is to change the land use 
designation for a part of the Agriculturally zoned parcel (Attachment A). 
 
This remaining 20-acre Agricultural parcel currently has the Plan 2040 land use 
designation of Neighborhood Core, NC (Attachment B) for approximately 5 acres and 
15 acres of Residential Neighborhood (RN-3).  The applicant requests the entirety of 
the site become RN-3 to allow for a church to be developed on the entire parcel 
rather than on 15 acres of the site that are currently RN-3. 
 
The subject site was annexed in 2021. Prior to annexation the property owner requested 
an amendment to the Ames Urban Fringe Future Land Map and Land Use Policy Plan 
(LUPP) for the North Growth Gap Area from Priority Transitional Residential, Rural 
Transitional Residential, and Parks and Recreation Areas to Urban Residential with a 
Convenience Commercial Node at the intersection of Cameron School Road and George 
Washington Carver Avenue.  
 
At the time of the request, in 2017, Mr. Friedrich felt that the amount of existing and  
proposed residential development within the city limits and proposed residential 
development on this property would create a need for a stronger commercial presence 
in north Ames. He felt the Convenience Commercial Node at this intersection would 
provide that presence as the developer desired.  
 
In the 2017 staff report, staff did acknowledge that proposed commercial node was not 



fully consistent with all the criteria for locating Convenience Commercial Nodes within 
the former LUPP policies. Staff’s principal concerns were related to locating 
commercial services on the edge of the City where there is no anticipated expansion of 
the city limits to accommodate future residential development. However, City Council 
agreed with the developer that additional commercial land area was appropriate and 
needed and approved the request with a 6-0 vote.  
 
As a result of that decision, the corner area was included as commercial with Ames 
Plan 2040 Comprehensive Plan. Plan 2040 removed floating commercial nodes and 
assigned commercial designations to specific areas of development. Plan 2040 assigned 
different types of commercial designation based upon development needs and the 
character of an area. Therefore, this corner was assigned approximately five acres of the 
Neighborhood Core designation reflecting the intended scale of development for this 
area and that would be likely vehicle oriented.    
 
Notably to the east of this site, Plan 2040 includes an additional commercial land 
designation with the Borgmeyer property as a Mixed-Use Neighborhood Core 
commercial designation at the center of the site.  This area is intended to function more 
as an integrated mixed use and pedestrian development area similar to a Sommerset type 
of commercial development. This is distinguished in its character from the Friedrich site 
that would be more vehicular oriented.  
 
At issue for the City Council is if the commercial area on the Bluffs site is necessary 
and desirable for the area compared to the proposed residential land use 
designation which would now accommodate Mr. Friedrich’s desire to sell the 
property for a church, which is not allowed in the Neighborhood Core Commercial 
Area.   The change may we acceptable when evaluating the details of Plan 2040 
growth and commercial land use plan for the area.  
 
Staff believes the request should be referred to a future agenda for discussion by City 
Council in order to determine if an amendment should be initiated. A full staff report 
with more information on commercial polices would allow a more robust discussion as 
to what impact removal of the commercial designation may have, if any, to the 
surrounding area and the larger City vision of growth. 
 
 
 
  



Attachment A 

 
 



Attachment B 

 

 



 

  



 


